
 

 

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk 
  
  

 
 
 Title: Housing Management Panel: East 

Area 

Date: 21 September 2015 

Time: 7.00pm 

Venue Robert Lodge Manor Place Brighton 
BN2 5GG 

Members: Councillors: 

Mears (Chair), ; Ward Councillors for 
the Area, Delegates of Tenants 
Association in the area. 

Contact: Greg Weaver 
Democratic Services Assistant 
01273 291214 
greg.weaver@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 



 

 
 



HOUSING MANAGEMENT PANEL: EAST AREA 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

9 APOLOGIES  

 

10 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 5 - 10 

 Minutes of the meeting held on 27 July 2015 (copy attached).  
 

11 CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS  

 

12 RESIDENTS QUESTION TIME 11 - 24 

 Responses to items raised at the Tenant Only Meeting held on 11 August 
2015 (copy attached as ‘blue pages’). 

 

 

13 TENANT AND RESIDENT SCRUTINY PANEL REPORT ON 
RESPONSIVE REPAIRS 

25 - 42 

 (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Glyn Huelin Tel: 01273 293306  
 

14 RESIDENT INVOLVEMENT 43 - 44 

 (copy attached).  
 

15 ELECTIONS TO SERVICE IMPROVEMENT GROUPS  

 To appoint representatives to the following Groups: 
 

 Home 

 Neighbourhood & Community 

 Tenancy 

 Involvement & Empowerment 

 Business & Value for Money 

 Tenant Disability Network. 
 
Two representatives and two deputies on each group. 

 

 

16 CITY WIDE REPORTS 45 - 54 

 To note the minutes and reports of the following Committees and City 
Wide groups (copies attached): 
 
A. Service Improvement Groups; 
B. New Homes for Neighbourhoods Update 
C. Brighton & Hove Seaside Community Homes. 

 

 

17 ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 



HOUSING MANAGEMENT PANEL: EAST AREA 

 
 

 
 

 



 

 
 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

EAST AREA HOUSING MANAGEMENT PANEL 
 

7.00pm 27 JULY 2015 
 

BRISTOL ESTATE, REAR OF 146-192, DONALD HALL ROAD, BRIGHTON, BN2 5DJ 
 

MINUTES 
 
Present: Councillors Mears (Chair), Mitchell, Meadows and Bell 
 
Representatives: Chris El-Shabba (Robert Lodge), Alan Cooke (Craven Vale), Patrick Mc 
Kenna (Manor Farm), Doreen Shepherd (Race Hill Farm), Janet Gearing (Woodingdean)  
 
 
Non-Voting Delegates: Grant Scott (Craven Vale) , Carmel Humphries (Racehill Farm), 
 

Officers: Becky Purnell (Resident Involvement Manager), Stuart Wilson (Highway Asset and 
Maintenance Manager), Sharon Terry (Resident Involvement Officer), Becky Purnell 
(Resident Involvement Manager), John Peel (Democratic Services Officer), Ododo Dafe 
(Head of Income Involvement and Improvement), Gregory Weaver (Democratic Services 
Assistant) 
 
Guests:   
 
 
1 APOLOGIES 
 
1.1 Apologies were received from Martin Tudsbury. 
 
 
2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
2.1 RESOLVED- That the minutes of the previous meetings held on the 26th January and 

14th May 2015 be approved and signed as the correct record. 
 
 
3 CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS 
 
3.1 The Chair introduced Councillor Meadows, the new Chair of the Housing & New 

Homes Committee to the Panel. In her introduction, Councillor Meadows stated that 
she would be seeking to increase resident engagement and proposals on how to do 
so would be forthcoming. 

 
 
4 RESIDENTS QUESTION TIME 
 
4.1 (Item 1 – Craven Vale) Alan Cooke expressed dissatisfaction with the response given. 
 

5



 

 
 

EAST AREA HOUSING MANAGEMENT PANEL 
 

27 JULY 2015 

4.2 Councillor Mitchell highlighted concerns regarding erosion of land and that a budget 
had been found for basic work. Cllr Mitchell also noted residents’ concerns regarding 
transport within the area. 

 
4.3 Alan Cooke noted that Craven Vale had recently conducted a survey with residents 

with 70% were in favour of a change to parking arrangements in the area.  
 
4.4 The panel considered possible implementation of a light touch parking scheme to 

counter road space issue. 
 
4.5 Stuart Wilson, Highway Asset and Maintenance Manager, noted that bottlenecking 

occurred at the junction. 
 
4.6 The Chair noted that this was a work in progress and both budgetary and incremental 

improvement investigation would be ongoing. 
 
4.7 Grant Scott noted that emergency services were experiencing difficulties accessing 

the area due to roads not being wide enough. 
 
4.8 James Cryer permit parking and metering and could provide a possible source of 

funding for local improvements. 
 
4.9  The Chair stated that possible problems could arise from displaced parking. 
 
4.10 (Item 2 – Woodingdean) Jo Gearing stated that they tried tarmacking using EDB 

money as there was not enough parking available due to the road being used as a rat 
run. She enquired the possibility of having the grass verge tarmacked. 

 
4.11 The Highway Asset and Maintenance Manager noted that this had been practiced in 

the past however the budget had now been re-appropriated to flooding care. Further 
to this, tarmacking would remove the natural drainage that the grass verge provides. 

 
4.12  The Chair enquired what the maintenance budget entailed and if it would be 

applicable. 
 
4.13 Stuart Wilson responded that it would be unable to fund this out of the current 

maintenance budget due to ongoing budget reductions. The Council had a statutory 
obligation to maintain public highways and footpaths; however this location would not 
come under this remit. 

 
4.14  The Chair enquired if the grass side was HRA land. 
 
4.15 Stuart Wilson stated that there was no statutory duty to look after verges, as they are 

there for natural drainage aesthetics. 
 
4.16 Chris El Shabba noted that Manor Hill had the same concerns due to zone parking. 
 
4.17 The Chair stated that there must be a working relationship between housing and 

highways as budgetary restrictions are prevalent and requested that some possible 
long term solutions be provided for the next meeting. 

 

6



 

 
 

EAST AREA HOUSING MANAGEMENT PANEL 
 

27 JULY 2015 

4.18 Councillor Mitchell said that the maintenance budget is very low due to annual budget 
reductions. Type 1 material had been used in the past. 

 
4.19 Jo Gearing enquired about the possible use of the EDB budget. 
 
4.20 Councillor Meadows responded that EDB could only be spent on housing land or on 

properties. 
 
4.21 Pat McKenna stated that people should be discouraged from parking on verges via 

bollards. 
 
4.22 The Chair stated practically there may not be resources. She noted Councillor 

Mitchell’s idea for using type 1 in places that need it most. This consideration is to be 
kept on the agenda and worked on over time. 

 
4.23 (Item 4 – Window Replacements) The Resident Involvement Manager read out the 

response. Mears Construction Company would be looking to inspect windows and 
would arrange to carry out repairs.  

 
4.24 The Chair stated that it was disheartening that his issue came up often noting that the 

answer is always the same. The condition of the windows are horrendous, she noted 
that there was a history of issues and that Tenant’s concerns should be heard. 

 
4.25 Jo Gearing noted that according to the last plans, works will take between 3-5 years. 

Works in Woodingdean will not be completed until 2020; she added that where these 
works are for disabled persons’ bungalows. 

 
4.26 The Chair stated she was disappointed to the response. She enquired why one part of 

the city is getting new windows and the other parts are not.  
 
4.27 Councillor Meadows agreed to look at the program and scrutinise it to conclude why 

works will be late and report findings to chair for the next meeting. 
 
5 PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
5.1 The Head of Income, Involvement and Improvement, the Head of Income, Inclusion & 

Improvement presented a report that covered Housing Management Performance 
during Quarter 2 of the 2014/15 financial year. The Head of Income, Inclusion & 
Improvement stated that the table provided figures and a RAG rating system against 
key performance indicators adding that the intention of the report was to provide Area 
Panels with information on Housing services performance and, as with previous 
versions of the report, comments and feedback on its presentation was welcomed to 
improve future versions. 

 
5.2 James Cryer noted that although the performance report appeared bad, lifts were 

fixed for every floor. 
 
5.3 Head of Income Involvement and Improvement stated that overall the report was 

mixed, summarising that there was overall positive performance despite low 
indicators. 

 
5.4 Jo Gearing noted it appeared more calls were made later in the day. 

7



 

 
 

EAST AREA HOUSING MANAGEMENT PANEL 
 

27 JULY 2015 

 
5.5 Head of Income Involvement and Improvement noted that there may be prospect to 

adjust rotas to meet this. 
 
5.6 The Chair raised that there were currently no reports on Asbestos or Legionnaires’ 

Disease where this had been provided in the past. An update due to high-rise of 
reports of Legionnaires’ Disease was requested. 

 
5.7 Councillor Meadows agreed to provide a report for the next meeting 
 
5.8 Ododo Dafe agreed a separate report to be provided regarding stock condition etc. 
 
5.9 James Cryer stated the Fire Health and Safety Board will look at feedback on 

Asbestos and Legionnaires’ disease. 
 
5.10 The Chair closed the discussion by noting the importance report. 
 
 
6 FEEDBACK FROM TENANT AND RESIDENT ASSOCIATIONS ON THEIR 

COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES 
 
6.1 The Resident Involvement Manager presented the report and subsequently requested 

an update from all Associations present. 
 
6.2 Chris El-Shabba stated she was pleased with work currently taking place. Noted work 

on roofs that have been redone. Half the garden is readily planted with all new grass. 
Money from EDB has been received and have had AGM. A new vice chair has been 
appointed. 

 
6.3 Grant Scott noted a summer fair that was recently held successfully helping to raise 

money for local dance group Tantrum. AGM increased the size of the committee. A 
kitchen has been put in at the community building. Outside agencies have paid for 
this. 60 fruit trees around Cravenvale have been planted. A woodland project on west 
side of Whitehawk hill has taken place. There is a foodbank on Friday. 

 
6.4 Alan Cooke stated that 2 pieces of land had been acquired through the EDB. 
 
6.5 Doreen Shepherd noted a new meeting room underneath Brockhurst Flat has been 

created. Furnished using Freecycle. Attendance of meetings is good. 
 
6.6 Patrick McKenna stated a resident has a 1200 signed petition to get route 21 bus 

back up by the hospital. Issues regarding fly tipping have occurred. There may also 
be a possible foodbank set up. 

 
6.7 The Chair noted Tenant’s Associations voice is smaller than before. Housing revenue 

account is made up by Tenant’s rents. As the whole budget is predicated around the 
money from residents, it is important that Tenants have their say. 

 
 
7 CITY WIDE REPORTS 
 

8



 

 
 

EAST AREA HOUSING MANAGEMENT PANEL 
 

27 JULY 2015 

7.1 The Chair stated the HRA is made up of Tenant’s rent. A plea was made that Tenants 
should know how much is spent on each scheme that comes up in future ensuring 
tenants get value for money. This information should be included in feedback forms. 

 
7.2 Councillor Meadows agreed, stating she is looking forward to working with Chair in 

future. 
 
7.3 RESOLVED – that the reports be noted 
 
 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 8.32pm 
 
Signed Chair 

Dated this  day of 
 

9



10



 
 

Item 12 on agenda 

Items from the Tenant Only meeting held on 11 August 2015 

 

 
 
1. Parking and driving on grass verges 
 
Action: The meeting agreed to ask for further discussion on this issue at 
the next Area Panel, with a request that officers bring some proposals of 
possible action that could be taken to resolve this ongoing problem. 
 

 
Response : Becky Purnell, Resident Involvement Manager- T:- 01273 
293022 
 
Housing appreciates that grass verge parking is a problem across the city and 
that time was spent on this matter at the last East Area Panel in 
July.  However the Area Panels purpose is to discuss the Housing Revenue 
Account and this cannot be used on the highway.   
 
The Highways Asset and Maintenance Manager stated at the meeting that 
tarmac cannot be used on grass verges as the city is a flood zone and while 
Highways could maintain ‘grasscrete’ verges once installed, they have no 
funding available to install it.   
 
Bollards have been used to prevent grass verge parking in some parts of the 
city and the Estates Development Budget has been used where the grass 
verges are part of Housing land.  Highways can supply and install a wooden 
bollard for £72 if services are not affected. 
 
We passed this enquiry onto Stuart Wilson the Highways Asset and 
Maintenance Manager to see if he has anything to add to this response, 
however with all council budgets being stretched there is no easy solution to 
this problem. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



 
 

 

 
2. 20mph Speed Limit 
 
The meeting discussed the 20 mph speed limit and felt it was having limited 
impact, and possibly increasing pollution as drivers are driving in a lower gear. 
 
Action: It was agreed to raise this at the Area Panel and ask for the 
results of the recent measurement of average speeds on 20mph roads. 
 

 
Response: Becky Purnell, Resident Involvement Manager- T:- 01273 
293022 
 
While we appreciate the speed limit is important to people the Area Panels 
are about the use of the Housing Revenue Account and this is not a housing 
matter.  We have passed your request to David Parker the Head of Transport 
Projects. Councillor Davey is the Chair of the Environment, Transport & 
Sustainability Urgency Sub-Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12



 
 

 
 

 
3. Community Development Workers 
 
The meeting agreed that Community Development Workers make a very 
important contribution to strengthening local communities and felt that a lot of 
the achievements in local areas would not have been possible without the 
support and expertise of Community Development Workers. 
 
There was concern that when the council is looking for budget cuts they may 
feel that community development is a soft target. It was felt that this would not 
be effective in the long term as community development work provides good 
value for money and saves the council a lot of money in the long run.  
 
Action: The meeting agreed to raise this at the Area Panel and ask for a 
commitment that funding for Community Development work be 
maintained beyond the current budget period. 
 

 
Response: Becky Purnell, Resident Involvement Manager- T:- 01273 
293022 
 
Housing appreciates that community development is an important resource 
for communities, however the Area Panels can only influence decisions 
relating to the Housing Revenue Account and not the council’s General Fund.  
I have passed your request onto Sam Warren who commissions community 
development in the city. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13



 
 

 

 
4. Reinstatement of the Housing Management Consultative Sub-

Committee (HMCSC) 
 
The meeting discussed the proposal from the Central Area Residents Meeting  
that the Housing Management Consultative Sub-Committee be re-instated. 
 
Action: It was agreed that this should be put forward to the Area Panel 
meeting as follows: 
 
It is proposed that the new Council administration reinstate the Housing 
Management Consultative Sub-Committee (HMCSC) and that this is 
discussed at all of the next Area Panels. 
 

 

Response: Ododo Dafe, Head of Income, Inclusion and Improvement, T:- 

01273 293201 

 

Thank you for raising this question.   Also it is a good example of a response 

that should feed through to all Area Panels as it will be of citywide interest, or 

that tenants wish to be on the agenda of each of the panel meetings. 

 

In response, it is important for me to initially outline that the decision regarding 

the abolition of the Housing Management Consultative Sub 

Committee(HMCSC), was not one that was taken by the then Housing 

Committee, and neither was it taken on party political grounds.  The matter 

was discussed at the all-party Constitutional Working Group, and the decision 

was made at the May 2014 Policy & Resources Committee – which did take 

into account feedback from the Area Panels which in the majority wanted to 

keep HMCSC. 

 

In case it helps, I have set out here some of the reasons that the change was 

made:- 

1. HMCSC was unique -  there was no other sub-committee in the 

council.  It didn’t make decisions but served a useful advisory role at 

the time when the Council had an executive system with only one 

Executive Councillor making decisions.  Whereas in the current cross-

party committee system, the Sub-Committee stood out as an arguably 

extravagant and outdated way to achieve limited consultation with a 

limited number of tenants – particularly when other methods were 

available.  

2. There was significant duplication and overlap between the Area Panels 

and HMCSC, with both providing a forum for tenant consultation and 

for tenant representatives and councillors to jointly debate matters.   

14



 
 

3. Housing, and the council generally, needed to make efficiencies in time 

and costs in order to meet the increasing demands made upon 

services – for example by higher numbers of vulnerable tenants, and 

as a result of welfare reforms.  These conditions still exist today and 

are ever more important – particularly with additional changes to 

welfare reforms that will affect almost 70% of tenants.  HMCSC 

required significant staff and financial resources which are more 

effectively used to meet tenants’ needs.  

4. On the matter of costs, the following paragraphs also appeared in the 

report to Area Panels in March 2014:- 

“…Costs are important, particularly as public funds are involved 

– with council rents being significantly subsidised by tax payers.  

There is also the issue of officer, councillor and tenant time 

involved in a process that is duplicated.   

Any savings that can be made in these austere times is helpful 

to tenants in the round as the money is reinvested into housing 

services.  There is a big demand for social housing, with an 

equally large responsibility on the council to provide value for 

money services, exercise prudence, and invest in meeting that 

demand.”  

5. Tenants’ views could and still can be effectively represented in the 

consultation section of committee reports for decision making - 

arguably in more ways and with greater ease than for any other group 

of people in the city receiving council services.   In addition, as with the 

other council committees, if residents wish, they can make deputations 

to the committee or submit a letter for response.   

6. Housing is now one service with different and overlapping ‘customers’ 

or service users across the city who are not solely council tenants – for 

example people on the housing waiting list, home owners, private 

sector tenants, people in need of adaptations, homeless households.  

Yet only council tenants attended HMCSC. 

7. There still exist a range of other ways that tenants are involved, for 

example Service Improvement Groups, Area Panels, City Assembly 

and through the Tenant and Resident Scrutiny Panel. 

8. The tenants’ indicative vote was rarely used at HMCSC, and feedback 

from Area Panels is currently able to provide decision makers with a 

broader feedback base and differing perspectives.  

9. Area Panels may take on more of a ‘neighbourhood governance’ role in 

the future and will want to increase their collaborative working style with 

communities and be able to increasingly influence decisions in a variety 

15



 
 

of other ways, and possibly through a number of committees, not solely 

Housing. 

Following the Policy & Resources Committee, work was also carried out with 

Area Panel representatives and officers to look at how Area Panels could be 

further strengthened, with an example of an outcome from that being that Blue 

Page items are now placed at the beginning of the agenda.   

A review of resident involvement is due to take place towards the end of this 

calendar year, and all aspects will be considered for potential further areas for 

improvement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16



 
 

 
______________________________________________________________ 
 5. Major Improvements Work 
 
At the Area Panel meeting in July residents from Woodingdean were informed 
that window replacements in their area are not included in the current 5 year 
major improvements / planned maintenance plan, and that it is not yet clear 
whether they will be in the next 5 year plan.  
 
Action: It was agreed that the following questions be raised at the next 
Area Panel meeting: 
 
a. Could full details of the major improvements/planned 

maintenance current 5 year plan be provided to residents so they 
can see what work is planned in their area? 

b. Could clarification be provided on whether leaseholders are 
obliged to have work done, and whether this varies for different 
types of work (eg could they opt-out of window replacements that 
affect just their property, but not roof replacements which affect a 
whole block)? 

c. If tenants have faulty windows, what can they do if there are no 
plans for window replacements in their area? 

d. Who is responsible for preparing the 5 year plan - is it the City 
Council or Mears? 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
Response: Martin Reid, Interim Head, Property & Investment – T:- 01273 
293321 
 
a. Could full details of the major improvements/planned 

maintenance current 5 year plan be provided to residents so they 
can see what work is planned in their area? 

 
Please see attachment for planned maintenance details for this financial  
year. Other planned programmes have not yet been finalised but you can get 
information from the council’s website page: http://www.brighton- 
hove.gov.uk/content/housing/council-housing/investing-your-homes 
-programme-improvement-works. Please note this programme is provisional  
and subject to change. This is based on need and dependent on budget,  
leasehold consultation and planning permission where applicable. 
 
b. Could clarification be provided on whether leaseholders are 

obliged to have work done, and whether this varies for different 
types of work (eg could they opt-out of window replacements that 
affect just their property, but not roof replacements which affect a 
whole block)? 

 
Both the council’s and leaseholders’ responsibilities are determined by the 
lease. The council are obliged to keep in repair the exterior and structure of 
the building and this includes all windows in the block.  Leaseholders are 

17

http://www.brighton-/


 
 

obliged to contribute a share of the cost of repairing or replacement of any or 
all windows even if the works are carried out solely on tenanted flats. 
 
Leaseholders are protected in law and any costs incurred have to be fair and 
reasonable.  The type of work, e.g. roof repairs, does not vary these  
responsibilities nor is there any provision to opt out of the obligations of the 
lease.  However, all of the above and any work or improvements being  
proposed on blocks are always subject to the statutory leasehold consultation  
rights.  In this, the council are obliged to formally consult with leaseholders  
regarding any works being proposed and all leaseholders have a legal right to  
object.  
 
We understand that some leaseholders will undoubtedly face difficulty with 
payment for large major works charges.  We have tried to set out all the ways  
that we can help or advise with a number of payment options (or in some 
cases grants or assistance) especially for resident leaseholders.  We include 
information on what is available in our ‘Major Works’ leaflet which  
accompanies the consultation notice.  
 
c. If tenants have faulty windows, what can they do if there are no 

plans for window replacements in their area? 
 
As previously stated, they should report all repairs in the usual way and 
contact the Repairs Helpdesk: 0800 052 6140 
 
d. Who is responsible for preparing the 5 year plan - is it the City 

Council or Mears? 
 
It is the Council (Property & Investment Team) who identify asset  
management / investment priorities which are agreed with Members as part of  
our capital programme. 
  
 
 

18



Programmed Maintenance Ltd - Property Programme
WIP on site currently 2014/2015 Programme

Ex Decs total spend up to 31 Mar

Section 20's 1/4/2015 (Wednesday)

Calcium Silicate Brick 31/3/2016 (Thursday)

Section 20's to be scheduled

Comment Street Budget NOC Start End WIP

£0 Wed 1/4/15 Thu 31/3/16 £0.00

Asbestos 38 Bute Street 0.00 0% Mon 1/6/15 Tue 30/6/15 £0.00

Asbestos 25 Beaty Avenue 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

Asbestos 27 Beaty Avenue 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

Asbestos 27 Beaty Avenue 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

Asbestos 31 Beaty Avenue 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

Asbestos 33 Beaty Avenue 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

SW to confirm scaff strike37-59 Beresford Road 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

Albion Hse Final Acc 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

Can we do? 93-99 Stephens Road 0.00 0% Mon 1/2/16 Mon 29/2/16 £0.00

10 Davey Dr 0.00 0% Mon 1/6/15 Tue 30/6/15 £0.00

Asbestos 187 Thorndean Road 0.00 0% Sun 14/6/15 Tue 30/6/15 £0.00

Asbestos 192 Thorndean Road 0.00 0% Sun 14/6/15 Tue 30/6/15 £0.00

32 Horton Road 0.00 0% Mon 1/6/15 Tue 30/6/15 £0.00

4 Colbourne Avenue 0.00 0% Mon 1/6/15 Tue 30/6/15 £0.00

CHECK 46 Colbourne Avenue 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

50 Colbourne Avenue 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Wed 30/9/15 £0.00

Problem Tenant5 Southall Avenue 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

scaffolded 7 Southall Avenue 0.00 0% Mon 1/6/15 Tue 30/6/15 £0.00

17 Southall Avenue 0.00 0% Mon 1/6/15 Tue 30/6/15 £0.00

scaffolded 21 Southall Avenue 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

32 Southall Avenue 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

scaffolded 41 Southall Avenue 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

scaffolded 42 Southall Avenue 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

scaffolded 43 Southall Avenue 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

scaffolded 45 Southall Avenue 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

46 Southall Avenue 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

50-56  Southall Avenue 0.00 0% Tue 1/12/15 Wed 30/12/15 £0.00

58-64 Southall Avenue 0.00 0% Tue 1/12/15 Wed 30/12/15 £0.00

66-72 Southall Avenue 0.00 0% Tue 1/12/15 Wed 30/12/15 £0.00

74-80 Southall Avenue 0.00 0% Tue 1/12/15 Wed 30/12/15 £0.00

61 Southall Avenue 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Tue 1/9/15 £0.00

67 Southall Avenue 0.00 0% Thu 1/10/15 Fri 30/10/15 £0.00

75 Southall Avenue 0.00 0% Sun 1/11/15 Mon 30/11/15 £0.00

77 Southall Avenue 0.00 0% Sun 1/11/15 Mon 30/11/15 £0.00

88 Southall Avenue 0.00 0% Tue 1/12/15 Wed 30/12/15 £0.00

scaffolded 96 Southall Avenue 0.00 0% Tue 1/12/15 Wed 30/12/15 £0.00

8 Clarke Avenue 0.00 0% Fri 1/5/15 Sat 30/5/15 £0.00

10 Clarke Avenue 0.00 0% Fri 1/5/15 Sat 30/5/15 £0.00

12 Clarke Avenue 0.00 0% Fri 1/5/15 Sat 30/5/15 £0.00

Wall tied 13 Clarke Avenue 0.00 0% Fri 1/5/15 Sat 30/5/15 £0.00

Wall tied 6 Findon Road 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Wed 30/9/15 £0.00

Wall tied 11 Findon Road 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Wed 30/9/15 £0.00

Wall tied 12 Findon Road 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Wed 30/9/15 £0.00

Wall tied 13 Findon Road 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Wed 30/9/15 £0.00

Wall tied 14  Findon Road 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Wed 30/9/15 £0.00

Wall tied 15 Findon Road 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Wed 30/9/15 £0.00

Wall tied 12 Nutley Close 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Wed 30/9/15 £0.00

Wall tied 1 Midhurst Walk 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Wed 30/9/15 £0.00

W.T.S 4 Midhurst Walk 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Wed 30/9/15 £0.00

Wall tied 10 Midhurst Walk 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Wed 30/9/15 £0.00

Wall tied 1 Steyning Avenue 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Wed 30/9/15 £0.00

Wall tied 2 Steyning Avenue 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Wed 30/9/15 £0.00

Wall tied 4 Steyning Avenue 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Wed 30/9/15 £0.00

Wall tied 6 Steyning Avenue 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Wed 30/9/15 £0.00

Wall tied 9 Steyning Avenue 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Wed 30/9/15 £0.00

20 Steyning Avenue 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

24 Steyning Avenue 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

36 Steyning Avenue 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

W.T.S 11 Bramber Avenue 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

Wall tied 13 Bramber Avenue 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

20 Bramber Avenue 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

Wall tied 21 Bramber Avenue 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

W.T.S 24 Bramber Avenue 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

Wall tied 28 Bramber Avenue 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

32 Bramber Avenue 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

Wall tied 4 Amberley Close 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Wed 30/9/15 £0.00

Wall tied 15 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

Wall tied 21 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

Wall tied 23 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

1 1 1 1 1

0
1

 -
 A

p
r 

- 
1

5

0
1

 -
 M

ay
 -

 1
5

0
1

 -
 J

u
n

 -
 1

5

0
1

 -
 J

u
l -

 1
5

0
1

 -
 O

ct
 -

 1
5

0
1

 -
 N

o
v 

- 
1

5

0
1

 -
 F

e
b

 -
 1

6

0
1

 -
 J

an
 -

 1
6

0
1

 -
 A

u
g 

- 
1

5

0
1

 -
 S

e
p

 -
 1

5

1 1

Regular Exterior Redcoration - works in progress & programmed start dates

0
1

 -
 D

ec
 -

 1
5

1 1 1 1

19



Wall tied 24 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

Wall tied 25Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

W.T.S 28Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

W.T.S 32Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

Wall tied 36 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

W.T.S 40 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

W.T.S 43 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

Wall tied 46 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Thu 1/10/15 Fri 30/10/15 £0.00

W.T.S 48 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Thu 1/10/15 Fri 30/10/15 £0.00

W.T.S 49 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Thu 1/10/15 Fri 30/10/15 £0.00

W.T.S 50 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Sun 1/11/15 Mon 30/11/15 £0.00

56 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Sun 1/11/15 Mon 30/11/15 £0.00

W.T.S 58 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Sun 1/11/15 Mon 30/11/15 £0.00

W.T.S 61 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Sun 1/11/15 Mon 30/11/15 £0.00

W.T.S 65 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Sun 1/11/15 Mon 30/11/15 £0.00

75 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Sun 1/11/15 Mon 30/11/15 £0.00

W.T.S 81 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Sun 1/11/15 Mon 30/11/15 £0.00

W.T.S 90 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Sun 1/11/15 Mon 30/11/15 £0.00

Wall tied 92 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Sun 1/11/15 Mon 30/11/15 £0.00

W.T.S 93 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Sun 1/11/15 Mon 30/11/15 £0.00

Wall tied 95 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Tue 1/12/15 Wed 30/12/15 £0.00

Wall tied 97Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Tue 1/12/15 Wed 30/12/15 £0.00

Wall tied 112 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Tue 1/12/15 Wed 30/12/15 £0.00

136 Amberley Drive 0.00 0% Tue 1/12/15 Wed 30/12/15 £0.00

Wall tied 11 Beeding Avenue 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

Wall tied 16  Beeding Avenue 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

Wall tied 20  Beeding Avenue 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

Wall tied 24  Beeding Avenue 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

Wall tied 25 Beeding Avenue 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

Wall tied 27  Beeding Avenue 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

W.T.S 36 Beeding Avenue 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

38  Beeding Avenue 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

Wall tied 45  Beeding Avenue 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

Wall tied 47  Beeding Avenue 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

13 Burwash Road 0.00 0% Fri 1/1/16 Sat 30/1/16 £0.00

14 Burwash Road 0.00 0% Fri 1/1/16 Sat 30/1/16 £0.00

15 Burwash Road 0.00 0% Fri 1/1/16 Sat 30/1/16 £0.00

16 Burwash Road 0.00 0% Fri 1/1/16 Sat 30/1/16 £0.00

17 Burwash Road 0.00 0% Fri 1/1/16 Sat 30/1/16 £0.00

18 Burwash Road 0.00 0% Fri 1/1/16 Sat 30/1/16 £0.00

19 Burwash Road 0.00 0% Fri 1/1/16 Sat 30/1/16 £0.00

20 Burwash Road 0.00 0% Fri 1/1/16 Sat 30/1/16 £0.00

21 Burwash Road 0.00 0% Fri 1/1/16 Sat 30/1/16 £0.00

22 Burwash Road 0.00 0% Fri 1/1/16 Sat 30/1/16 £0.00

23 Burwash Road 0.00 0% Fri 1/1/16 Sat 30/1/16 £0.00

24 Burwash Road 0.00 0% Fri 1/1/16 Sat 30/1/16 £0.00

25 Burwash Road 0.00 0% Fri 1/1/16 Sat 30/1/16 £0.00

26 Burwash Road 0.00 0% Fri 1/1/16 Sat 30/1/16 £0.00

105 Cowley Drive 0.00 0% Mon 22/6/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

191 Cowley Drive 0.00 0% Mon 22/6/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

S20? 209-215 Cowley Drive check not s20 0.00 0% £0.00

S20? 201-207 Cowley Drive - check not s20 0.00 0% £0.00

scaffolded 44 Stanstead Crescent 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

scaffolded 46 Stanstead Crescent 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

12 Romsey Close 0.00 0% Mon 25/5/15 Tue 30/6/15 £0.00

10 Horton Road 0.00 0% Thu 1/10/15 Fri 30/10/15 £0.00

56 Horton Road 0.00 0% Thu 1/10/15 Fri 30/10/15 £0.00

10 Stephens Road 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Wed 30/9/15 £0.00

12 Stephens Road 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Wed 30/9/15 £0.00

93-99 Stephens Road 0.00 0% Tue 1/9/15 Wed 30/9/15 £0.00

28 Davey Drive 0.00 0% Thu 1/10/15 Fri 30/10/15 £0.00

36 Davey Drive 0.00 0% Thu 1/10/15 Fri 30/10/15 £0.00

45 Davey Drive 0.00 0% Fri 5/6/15 Sat 6/6/15 £0.00

58 Davey Drive 0.00 0% Fri 5/6/15 Sat 6/6/15 £0.00

60 Davey Drive 0.00 0% Fri 5/6/15 Sat 6/6/15 £0.00

82 Davey Drive 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

1 Melrose Close 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

10 Melrose Close 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

11 Melrose Close 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

29 The Crestway 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

31 The Crestway 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

39 The Crestway 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

43 The Crestway 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

51 The Crestway 0.00 0% Tue 5/5/15 Tue 8/9/15 £0.00

69 The Crestway 0.00 0% Tue 8/9/15 Thu 8/10/15 £0.00

5 Major Close 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

1-7 Haig Ave 0.00 0% Tue 1/3/16 Wed 30/3/16 £0.00

25-31 Haig Avenue 0.00 0% Tue 1/3/16 Wed 30/3/16 £0.00

8 Tintern Close 0.00 0% Tue 1/3/16 Wed 30/3/16 £0.00

11 Mountfields - Provisional 0.00 0% Wed 1/7/15 Thu 30/7/15 £0.00

12 Mountfields - Provisional 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

16 Mountfields - BLB report required 0.00 0% £0.00

Suspected asbestos19 Mountfields  - Provisional 0.00 0% £0.00

22 Mountfields - Provisional 0.00 0% £0.00

34 Mountfields - Provisional 0.00 0% £0.00

20



1-6 Ferring Court 0.00 0% Sun 1/11/15 Mon 30/11/15 £0.00

36-41 Roedale Ct 0.00 0% Fri 1/1/16 Sat 30/1/16 £0.00

42-47 Roedale Ct 0.00 0% £0.00

14-19 Plasitow Close 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Sun 30/8/15 £0.00

8-12 Plasitow Close 0.00 0% Sat 1/8/15 Tue 15/9/15 £0.00

5 & 6 Sunninghill Cl 0.00 0% Thu 1/10/15 Fri 30/10/15 £0.00

7 & 8 Sunninghill Cl 0.00 0% Thu 1/10/15 Fri 30/10/15 £0.00

9 & 10 Sunninghill Cl 0.00 0% Thu 1/10/15 Fri 30/10/15 £0.00

11 & 12 Sunninghill Cl 0.00 0% Sun 1/11/15 Mon 30/11/15 £0.00

13 & 14 Sunninghill Cl 0.00 0% Sun 1/11/15 Mon 30/11/15 £0.00

15 & 16 Sunninghill Cl 0.00 0% Sun 1/11/15 Mon 30/11/15 £0.00

17 & 18 Sunninghill Cl 0.00 0% Sun 1/11/15 Mon 30/11/15 £0.00

19 & 20 Sunninghill Cl 0.00 0% Sun 1/11/15 Mon 30/11/15 £0.00

21 & 22 Sunninghill Cl 0.00 0% Sun 1/11/15 Mon 30/11/15 £0.00

23 & 24 Sunninghill Cl 0.00 0% Sun 1/11/15 Mon 30/11/15 £0.00

25 & 26 Sunninghill Cl 0.00 0% Tue 1/12/15 Wed 30/12/15 £0.00

27 & 28 Sunninghill Cl 0.00 0% Tue 1/12/15 Wed 30/12/15 £0.00

29 & 30 Sunninghill Cl 0.00 0% Tue 1/12/15 Wed 30/12/15 £0.00

31 & 32 Sunninghill Cl 0.00 0% Tue 1/12/15 Wed 30/12/15 £0.00

33 & 34 Sunninghill Cl 0.00 0% Tue 1/12/15 Wed 30/12/15 £0.00

35 & 36 Sunninghill Cl 0.00 0% Tue 1/12/15 Wed 30/12/15 £0.00

37 & 38 Sunninghill Cl 0.00 0% Tue 1/12/15 Wed 30/12/15 £0.00

39 & 40 Sunninghill Cl 0.00 0% Tue 1/12/15 Wed 30/12/15 £0.00

52 Clarendon Villas - Internal 0.00 0% Tue 1/3/16 Wed 30/3/16 £0.00

52 Clarendon Villas - Ex decs 0.00 0% Tue 1/3/16 Wed 30/3/16 £0.00

85 Lansdown Place 0.00 0% £0.00

Moulscomb Way Shops 0.00 0% Mon 1/2/16 Mon 29/2/16 £0.00

18 Tisbury Road 0.00 0% £0.00

52 Tisbury Road 0.00 0% £0.00

74 Tisbury Road 0.00 0% £0.00

52 Norton Road 0.00 0% £0.00

54 Norton Road 0.00 0% £0.00

43 Ventor Villas 0.00 0% £0.00

13 Denmark Villas 0.00 0% £0.00

14-24 Tavistock Down 0.00 0% Tue 1/3/16 Wed 30/3/16 £0.00

13-16 Kebble Lodge Agreed to do on new rates 0.00 0% Tue 1/3/16 Wed 30/3/16 £0.00

7-12 Kebble Lodge Agreed to do on new rates 0.00 0% Tue 1/3/16 Wed 30/3/16 £0.00

29-34 Kebble Lodge Agreed to do on new rates 0.00 0% Tue 1/3/16 Wed 30/3/16 £0.00

37-43 Natal Road 0.00 0% Tue 1/3/16 Wed 30/3/16 £0.00

31-41 Lockwood Crescent - Price for pointing works as large elevations, £30-£35 m20.00 0% Mon 1/2/16 Mon 29/2/16 £0.00

268 Ditchling Road 0.00 0% Mon 1/2/16 Mon 29/2/16 £0.00

69 Ditchling Road 0.00 0% Mon 1/2/16 Mon 29/2/16 £0.00

3 Wilbury Gardens - Internal 0.00 0% £0.00

40 Wilbury Villas 0.00 0% £0.00

Parker Court, 0.00 0% £0.00

1-16, 385 Kingsway 0.00 0% Mon 1/2/16 Mon 29/2/16 £0.00

17-32, 385 Kingsway 0.00 0% Mon 1/2/16 Mon 29/2/16 £0.00

33-48, 385 Kingsway 0.00 0% Mon 1/2/16 Mon 29/2/16 £0.00

49-56, 385 Kingsway 0.00 0% Mon 1/2/16 Mon 29/2/16 £0.00

SW Section 2062-72 Horton Road 0.00 0% £0.00

SW Section 201-6 Pett Close 0.00 0% Mon 1/2/16 Sat 30/1/16 £0.00

296 Hangleton Way 0.00 0% £0.00

298 Hangleton Way 0.00 0% £0.00

2 Standean Close 0.00 0% £0.00

49 Hawkhurst Road 0.00 0% £0.00

76 Hawkhurst Road 0.00 0% £0.00

90 Hawkhurst Road 0.00 0% £0.00

99 Hawkhurst Road 0.00 0% £0.00

£0.00

21



11 1 1 1 11 1 1 1 1 11 1 1 1 1 11 1 1 1

0
1

 -
 A

p
r 

- 
1

7

0
1

 -
 M

ay
 -

 1
7

0
1

 -
 J

u
n

 -
 1

7

0
1

 -
 J

u
l -

 1
7

0
1

 -
 A

u
g 

- 
1

7

0
1

 -
 S

e
p

 -
 1

7

0
1

 -
 J

an
 -

 1
7

0
1

 -
 F

e
b

 -
 1

7

0
1

 -
 M

ar
 -

 1
7

1 1 1

0
1

 -
 N

o
v 

- 
1

7

0
1

 -
 D

ec
 -

 1
7

0
1

 -
 J

an
 -

 1
8

0
1

 -
 F

e
b

 -
 1

8

0
1

 -
 J

u
n

 -
 1

6

0
1

 -
 J

u
l -

 1
6

0
1

 -
 A

u
g 

- 
1

6

0
1

 -
 S

e
p

 -
 1

6

0
1

 -
 O

ct
 -

 1
6

0
1

 -
 N

o
v 

- 
1

6

0
1

 -
 O

ct
 -

 1
7

0
1

 -
 A

p
r 

- 
1

6

0
1

 -
 M

ay
 -

 1
6

0
1

 -
 D

ec
 -

 1
6

0
1

 -
 F

e
b

 -
 1

6

0
1

 -
 M

ar
 -

 1
6

22



23



24



Area Panels:   September 2015 

Briefing Paper:  Tenant & Resident Scrutiny 
Panel on Responsive Repairs

Background:  

The Tenant & Resident Scrutiny Panel was set up in April 2013. The scrutiny review 
on Responsive Repairs is the panel’s third scrutiny panel and was selected after 
analysing responses to tenant surveys submitted to the panel, with over half of the 
responses suggesting this as an area for scrutiny. 

The scope of the panel was to: 

 Focus on the repairs pathway for tenants when reporting a fault, right up to
completion and for the feedback process afterwards.

 Visit the Mears Repairs Helpdesk to listen into telephone calls and find out
how the service operated; how are jobs prioritised?

 Carry out visits with operatives to see how well the repair is fixed and how the
tenant found the experience.

 See if the responsive repairs service were meeting the needs of its residents
by looking at tenant satisfaction data. To see how tenant satisfaction was
received, recorded and used to improve the service. The panel also wanted to
find out whether the council was carrying out sufficient monitoring itself of the
repairs service

 Identify if there were any improvements that the service could make.

Key findings: 

The full review is attached and commends the council and Mears on its partnership 
working, it notes that staff are working to high standards and working hard to achieve 
tough targets. The panel was very impressed with much of what they saw and 
makes three recommendations: 

1. Repairs office staff shadow operatives as part of their training and induction –
This is agreed and commences in October. The relationship between good
identification of the repairs and completing a repair right first time is really
important and this change will support improvements in the service.

25



2. Resident Assessors are implemented fully to assess repairs – This is agreed
in part and has progressed well over last six months through joint working with
residents. The scheme will re-launch shortly and the Resident Inspectors
(new title) will meet six times a year to plan their activities and focus on
providing a resident perspective on the quality of the service. However, the
recommendations around Resident Inspectors visiting in person and choosing
which properties to visit present specific risk management concerns and it is
not recommended that this is implemented.

3. Rate Your Estate scheme for estate inspections is reintroduced – The council
operates a regular estate inspection programme throughout the city which
residents can and do attend, therefore this recommendation is not agreed.
Residents on the Neighbourhood & Community Service Improvement Group
are continuing to look at ways to maximise the involvement of residents in
addressing issues on their estates, including using new technology to
highlight issues such as fly tipping, abandoned vehicles, and anti-social
behaviour quickly so that the council can respond in a timely way.

Next steps: 

 The report will go to Housing & New Homes Committee in November
 Progress against the agreed recommendations will be tracked by the Repairs

Partnership Core Group.

Contact: 

Glyn Huelin, Partnering Business Manager, Brighton & Hove City Council, 
glyn.huelin@brighton-hove.gov.uk, 01273 293306 

26



Area Panel Report Agenda Item  

Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Response to the Tenant & Resident Scrutiny Panel 
on responsive repairs 

Date of Meeting: 

Report of: Executive Director, Environment, Development and 
Housing

Contact Officer: Name: Glyn Huelin Tel: 01273 293306 

Email: Glyn.huelin@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: All 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE  

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT

1.1 This report sets out the Housing response to the recommendations of the Tenant 
& Resident Scrutiny Panel in their report on responsive repairs. That report can 
be found at Appendix 1. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:

2.1 That the committee notes the evidence, findings and recommendations of the 
Tenant & Resident Scrutiny Panel relating to the responsive repairs service. 

2.2 That the committee agrees the actions proposed in this report in response to the 
Tenant & Resident Scrutiny Panel’s recommendations. 

3. CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The Tenant & Resident Scrutiny Panel was set up in April 2013. The scrutiny 
review on Responsive Repairs is the panel’s third scrutiny panel and was 
selected after analysing responses to tenant surveys submitted to the panel, with 
over half of the responses suggesting this as an area for scrutiny. 

3.2 The scope of the panel was to: 

 Focus on the repairs pathway for tenants when reporting a fault, right up
to completion and for the feedback process afterwards.

 Visit the Mears Repairs Helpdesk to listen into telephone calls and find out
how the service operated; how are jobs prioritised?

 Carry out visits with operatives to see how well the repair is fixed and how
the tenant found the experience.

 See if the responsive repairs service were meeting the needs of its
residents by looking at tenant satisfaction data. To see how tenant
satisfaction was received, recorded and used to improve the service. The
panel also wanted to find out whether the council was carrying out
sufficient monitoring itself of the repairs service

 Identify if there were any improvements that the service could make.

27



3.3 The Housing team would like to thank members of the panel for their hard work 
reviewing the service. All officers and Mears staff found the input of the panel a 
valuable challenge and welcome the opportunity to share how the service 
operates with residents. 

 
4.  RESPONSE TO THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 Recommendation one 
  
4.2 The panel recommends that as part of their training and induction, the 

Repairs Helpdesk staff should spend time with repairs operatives so that 
they can get a better understanding what is involved in the various repairs 
jobs and the average time taken. Both new and existing helpdesk staff 
should shadow plumbers, carpenters and electricians, and any other staff 
who may be regularly involved.   

 
4.3 This recommendation is agreed in full and work is underway to implement it 

commencing in October 2015. 
 
4.4 As the panel has identified the relationship between diagnosis (carried out by 

Repairs Helpdesk staff) and carrying out repairs is critical to delivering a right first 
time service to residents. 

 
4.5 This recommendation will support the development of Repairs Helpdesk staff as 

the main contact point for residents with repairs enquiries. The recommendation 
has been fully agreed by Mears and will be monitored by the partnership Core 
Group. 

 
4.6 Recommendation two 
 
4.7 The panel recommend that resident assessors are used to assess a 

percentage of the completed repairs, to get a fuller assessment of these 
repairs.  The panel believes that by having another tenant visiting in 
person, it would lead to a more open discussion about the standard of the 
repair and increase the feedback for BHCC and Mears. The panel would 
expect that the assessors are able to choose for themselves the homes 
they visit to assess completed repairs and the number of assessments 
carried out. 

 
4.8 It might be necessary to increase the capacity of the resident assessor 

scheme to enable more assessments to take place. It would be sensible to 
use the existing expertise of tenants and leaseholders, e.g. for ex-builders 
to assess repairs. 

 
4.9 This recommendation is agreed in part and the council has been working with 

Resident Inspectors (previously Resident Assessors) to develop this initiative 
across the repairs service, however the recommendations around Resident 
Inspectors visiting in person and choosing which properties to visit present 
specific risk management concerns and it is not recommended that this is 
implemented. 

 

28



4.10 The detail of the report from this scrutiny panel indicates that improvements can 
be made to how the service engages with residents and uses feedback to 
improve. The partnership has successfully integrated learning from complaints to 
change processes and improve customer service over the last few years. The 
council is developing the Resident Inspector programme and recognises that this 
programme should be effectively integrated into the responsive repairs service 
and also needs to operate with the existing Home Service Improvement Group. 

 
4.11 Over the last six months existing Resident Inspectors, members of the Home 

Service Improvement Group and officers have been working to improve the 
Resident Inspectors project, increase the opportunities for residents to get 
involved and identify recommendations for where the service can improve.    

 
4.12 Resident Inspectors meet together six times a year to identify what inspections 

they wish to carry out and to feedback to the Home Service Improvement Group. 
The inspectors are looking at a sample of empty properties before re-letting, 
reviewing sheltered scheme projects from a resident perspective, and contacting 
residents who have recently had a repair completed to get feedback on the 
service.  

 
4.13 An article will be published in the autumn edition of Homing In to ask for more 

residents to join the Resident Inspector project and this will also be publicised 
through resident associations and online. 

 
4.14 The recommendation includes details about visiting residents in their homes 

which has implications around health and safety, data protection, management of 
the clients of concern register and safeguarding. It would not be appropriate for 
resident inspectors to have access to repairs details for other residents and to 
select which properties to visit and further the council has specific controls and 
processes around safeguarding residents and staff which could not operate 
effectively under this model. An alternative way of enabling resident to resident 
discussion about the service may be to arrange a session with a number of 
residents that have had recent repairs to identify what went well and what could 
be improved.    

 
4.15 Recommendation three 
 
4.16 Panel members are aware that there are no current estate inspections such 

as Rate Your Estate. This scheme was a useful way of recording residents’ 
concerns against a set of maintenance and appearance standards that 
were shared across the city. The panel recommends that this scheme is 
reintroduced with sufficient resources in order to enable residents to raise 
concerns about their estate. This will help to identify hotspots where there 
are problems such as fly-tipping, abandoned vehicles etc.  

 
4.17 The council operates a regular estate inspection programme throughout the city 

which residents can and do attend, therefore this recommendation is not agreed. 
 
4.18 Residents on the Neighbourhood & Community Service Improvement Group are 

continuing to look at ways to maximise the involvement of residents in 
addressing issues on their estates, including using new technology to highlight 

29



issues such as fly tipping, abandoned vehicles, and anti-social behaviour quickly 
so that the council can respond in a timely way.  

 
4.18 The Rate Your Estate scheme was trialled as part of the Turning the Tide pilot in 

2011 alongside the Housing and Estates Forum. Evaluation of the Rate Your 
Estate scheme identified that whilst the approach was popular with some 
resident representatives in the pilot area, there was a lack of response and poor 
engagement with local residents and resident representatives in other parts of 
the city, despite a proactive recruitment and training campaign. The scheme was 
not accessible to all communities/residents and was also a very resource-
intensive model.  

 
4.19 The Housing and Estates Forum brought together service providers at a 

neighbourhood level which residents found useful. The Council are currently 
looking at neighbourhood models as part of the Co-operative Council agenda 
and will use previous learning to determine future models. 

 
4.20 The council is consulting on development of a new Asset Management Strategy 

which will be taken through a future committee and will include consideration of 
repairs and maintenance to communal areas and how this can link into the 
existing estate inspection programme.  

 
 
5.   COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 The panel sought resident input into this scrutiny through a survey and through 

meetings with residents at the Home Service Improvement Group. 
 
5.2 The scrutiny panel findings will be presented to the four Area Panel meetings in 

September 2015 before going to Housing & New Homes Committee.  
 
 
6.  CONCLUSION  
 
6.1 This report sets out the actions proposed by Housing alongside the 

recommendations in the Tenant & Resident Scrutiny Panel’s report on the 
responsive repairs service. 

 
 
7. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
7.1 Financial Implications: 
 
 To follow  
 
 Finance Officer Consulted:  Date:  
 
7.2 Legal Implications: 

 
 To follow 
   
 Lawyer Consulted:  Date:  

30



 
 
7.3 Equalities Implications: 
  
 There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report. 
 
7.4 Sustainability Implications: 
 
 There are no direct sustainability implications arising from this report. 
 
7.5 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
  
 There are no direct crime and disorder implications arising from this report. 
  
7.6 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
  
 There are significant risks around residents visiting other residents independently 

in their homes which are detailed in 4.14 and below and as result this element of 
the recommendation from the scrutiny panel is not recommended for 
implementation.  

 
 In particular the council operates a range of controls around resident information 

to comply with data protection responsibilities and it would not be appropriate to 
share information on clients of concern, recent repairs, tenure and address with 
other residents. In addition the council has a duty of care to ensure the safety of 
both staff and residents which is supported by detailed processes, risk 
management controls and working arrangements. A client of concern register is 
in operation to manage safety and access to this register could not be given to 
residents. Independent resident visits into the home to inspect repairs would not 
be covered by these controls and would present significant risk to residents 
involved.  

 
7.7 Public Health Implications: 
 
 There are no direct public health implications arising from this report. 
 
7.8 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
 There are no direct Corporate or Citywide implications arising from this report.  
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices: 
Appendix 1: Tenant & Resident Scrutiny Panel Report 
 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 
None 
 
Background Documents 
None 
 
 

31



1

May 2015 

Responsive Repairs 

Panel Members: 

Dave Murtagh (Chair) 
Philip Bradick 
Lesley Cope 

Chief John Blackbear was also a member of the panel but 
resigned in March 2015.  

32



2

Chair’s Foreword 

I have found the experience of chairing this Responsive Repairs panel a privilege. I 
have learned so much about the processes and planning that goes on to deliver the 
Responsive Repairs Service.  

As part of the panel’s work we visited the Mears Repairs Helpdesk at the Housing 
Centre in Moulsecoomb. We saw how the team worked in a pressurised environment 
in a professional manner; the team had good staff morale and were very well 
managed.  

We noted that the Helpdesk staff had altered how they ran the service following 
tenant feedback. We think that the changes made were positive ones, which have 
improved the service that is offered. We welcome the changes, including the 
helpdesk actively contacting tenants after repairs to get feedback. 

We were also able to go out with different repairs staff to see how they carried out 
their day to day work; between us we spent time with plumbers, electricians and 
carpenters. We would like to thank Mears for arranging these sessions for us, for the 
operatives for making us feel so welcome, and to the residents that we visited for 
allowing us to come to their homes. 

Overall, we came away with a very positive view of the service that is provided by 
everyone we spoke to, and in particular, the Repairs Helpdesk.  

Our main recommendation is around the lack of tenant involvement in assessing 
repairs after they have been carried out – we strongly support the tenant assessor 
scheme that is in place already and feel that it should be used more widely to 
improve honest feedback from tenants.  

We would also like to see the re-introduction of the Rate your Estate scheme as a 
key part of the responsive repairs service. This will increase tenant involvement in 
services. The repairs service is a service paid for by the tenants and should have 
tenant involvement at its heart. We hope that this is something that can be taken 
forward to improve services for tenants across the city.  

I would like to add my personal thanks to Chief John Blackbear and to others for 
their part in this panel and other work that we have done together. This panel was 
originally chaired by Chief, but he had to leave before it could be completed, as did 
Andreas. I and the other panel members are grateful for their input and wish them 
well for the future. 

Dave Murtagh 
Chair of the Responsive Repairs Tenant & Resident Scrutiny Panel 

May 2015

33



 3

1.  Executive summary  
 
1.1     The panel selected this scrutiny review following suggestions from tenants, 
 with over half of the responses suggesting this as an area for scrutiny.  
 
1.2 The Responsive Repairs service is contracted to Mears Group (referred to as 

Mears in this report) by Brighton & Hove City Council, running from 2010 for 
ten years. The service provides unplanned (‘responsive’) repairs to the homes 
of council tenants (as opposed to planned maintenance repairs).  

 
1.3 Members of the team spoke about the key concerns raised by tenants which 

were: 
 

 Low levels for customer feedback received after a repair job had been 
completed. There was also concern that ‘mystery shopping’ of repairs has 
been discontinued, adding to the lack of tenant involvement. 

 It appears that Mears are the only people who are currently collecting 
tenant feedback, which is seen as a conflict of interest, since Mears also 
provide the initial repairs service. The panel accepts that there is a role for 
Mears to play but the feedback that they collect should only be part of the 
overall picture. 

 There had been a pilot of tenant involvement in estate inspections but the 
most useful elements of this, such as tenants leading the process or the 
central reporting back on all repairs raised, had not been taken forward.  

 
1.4 The Responsive Repairs service provided the panel with useful performance 

and benchmarking information. Senior managers and the Chair of Housing 
Committee emphasised the importance of having useful customer feedback to 
monitor and make service improvements.  

 
1.5 The panel want to commend the Council and Mears on its partnership

 working.  It found the staff were working to high standards and were  working              
hard to achieve tough targets set by the council. In addition the panel was 
very impressed with much of what they saw and they would like to thank 
everyone who spoke to them as well as the tenants who contributed to its 
investigation.  

 
 In particular the panel would like to thank the operatives who took them out to 

demonstrate the work that they carried out. The panel felt the operatives 
undertake a wide range of jobs to high standards, and wanted to recognise 
the key role that they play in keeping tenants’ homes up to standard. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

34



 4

2.  List of recommendations   
 
2.1  The panel would like to make the following three recommendations based on 

the evidence they heard: 
 
 Recommendation One: 
 

The panel recommends that as part of their training and induction, the 
Repairs Helpdesk staff should spend time with repairs operatives so 
that they can get a better understanding what is involved in the various 
repairs jobs and the average time taken. Both new and existing helpdesk 
staff should shadow plumbers, carpenters and electricians, and any 
other staff who may be regularly involved. (to check what is feasible in 
relation to the contract with Mears and whether this kind of 
recommendation can be implemented)  

 
 Recommendation Two:  
 
 The panel recommends that resident assessors are used to assess a 

percentage of the completed repairs, to get a fuller assessment of these 
repairs.  The panel believes that by having another tenant visiting in 
person, it would lead to a more open discussion about the standard of 
the repair and increase the feedback for BHCC and Mears. The panel 
would expect that the assessors are able to choose for themselves the 
homes they visit to assess completed repairs and the number of 
assessments carried out.   

 
            It might be necessary to increase the capacity of the resident assessor 

scheme to enable more assessments to take place. It would be sensible 
to use the existing expertise of tenants and leaseholders, e.g. for ex-
builders to assess repairs. 

 
 Recommendation Three: 
 
 Panel members are aware that there are no current estate inspections 

such as Rate Your Estate. This scheme was a useful way of recording 
residents’ concerns against a set of maintenance and appearance 
standards that were shared across the city. The panel recommends that 
this scheme is reintroduced with sufficient resources in order to enable 
residents to raise concerns about their estate. This will help to identify 
hotspots where there are problems such as fly-tipping, abandoned 
vehicles etc.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

35



 5

3.  Introduction   
 
3.1 The panel selected this review after analysing the responses to their tenant 

surveys. Over half of the responses1 received requested that the panel 
scrutinise responsive repairs. There were a range of issues raised, including 
the standard of repairs and how feedback was collected after repairs were 
carried out. 
 

3.2 The panel’s key concern was to find out whether the correct processes were 
in place for tenants when reporting a fault right up to completion, and for the 
feedback/ review process afterwards. They wanted to ensure that the current 
processes are the best ones for achieving tenant satisfaction.   

 
 
4.  The scope of the panel  
 
4.1 The panel agreed the scope would be to: 
 

1) Focus on the repairs pathway for tenants when reporting a fault, right up to 
completion and for the feedback process afterwards.  
 

2) Visit the Mears Repairs Helpdesk to listen into telephone calls and find out 
how the service operated; how are jobs prioritised?  

 
3) Carry out visits with operatives to see how well the repair is fixed and how the 

tenant found the experience.  
 

4) See if the responsive repairs service were meeting the needs of its residents 
by looking at tenant satisfaction data. To see how tenant satisfaction was 
received, recorded and used to improve the service. The panel also wanted to 
find out whether the council was carrying out sufficient monitoring itself of the 
repairs service 

 
5) Identify if there were any improvements that the service could make. 
 
However, the panel resolved not to look into budgets or the cost of materials as 
tenants had been involved in the contract discussions.  
 

 
5. How the panel collected evidence 
 
Dates Meeting 
2 July 2014  Scope of the panel 
 
5 August 2014 

 
Evidence gathering private scoping meeting with Glyn 
Huelin (Partnering Business Manager), James Cryer 
(Partnering Manager- Mears) and Dave Warner 

                      
1 A total of 31 tenant survey responses had been received. 19 responses referred to repairs.  

36



 6

(Performance Manager-Mears) 
 
2 September 
2014 

 
Evidence gathering private meeting. Analysis of repairs 
information requested by the panel. Draft survey for 
tenants. 
 

 
16 September 
2014 

 
Private meeting. Continuation of the analysis of repairs 
information requested by the panel.  
 
Approval of Tenant Scrutiny survey on repairs to be 
emailed to residents on the resident involvement database. 

 
7 October 2014 

 
Private meeting. Compilation of scrutiny questions for their 
next meeting. Analysis of information from Amicus Horizon. 

23 October 
2014 

Visit to Mears Repairs Helpdesk 

11 November 
2014 

Private meeting with Benjamin Okagbue (Head of Property 
& Investment), Glyn Huelin and James Cryer  

2 December 
2014 

Private meeting with the Head of Housing - Councillor Bill 
Randall & Member of the Housing Committee – Councillor 
Mary Mears 

2 February 
2015 

Panel meeting to discuss report findings – Councillor Gill 
Mitchell spoke to the panel. 

Early Feb 2015 Visits with operatives 
March/ April 
2015 

Panel meetings to discuss report findings and 
recommendations 

 
 

5.1 In addition the panel attended several housing meetings and analysed the 
tenant survey responses that they had received. 

 
5.2 The panel was very impressed by the written information given to them by the 

Mears staff; they had a presentation on the repairs pathway from the first 
point of call up to completion and were provided with information about how 
feedback was collected. The panel was also grateful for the information 
supplied by Amicus Horizon, a housing association. 
 

Improving resident engagement & the collection of performance information 
 

5.3 Panel members were disappointed by the low level of resident responses to 
their email survey (with only nine responses received in total) and will 
continue to look at ways to improve resident engagement with the panel as 
part of their ongoing work programme. 

 
5.4 The panel believes that the lack of resident response reflects the relatively low 

levels of engagement that the panel saw between council tenants and the 
Repairs Team; the lack of customer feedback is the biggest gap in the service 
provided by the Repairs Team. 

 

37



 7

5.5 The panel was also concerned that they did not receive the same level of 
information from the council about repairs, as they did from Mears. The panel 
regretted that projects such as mystery shopping and estate inspections had 
ended, because they had been used by both the council and residents to 
assess the performance of the repairs service. The panel would like to see 
both the council and residents collect more evidence about the repairs 
service.    
 
 

6. The Responsive Repairs service 

6.1 Mears hold a ten year contract for responsive repairs for Brighton and Hove 
City council; this began in 2010. The Mears helpdesk is the first point of 
contact for tenants reporting a fault or repair and is available 24 hours a day, 
seven days a week.  It is responsible for calls from 11,000 council properties. 
The helpdesk has 9 call agents and a call centre supervisor. In one month 
(June 2014) it handled 6,500 calls. The team works to targets, with the aim to 
answer calls within 20 seconds; data supplied to the panel shows that they 
are reaching this target between 75% and 80% of the time, with their 
performance improving. 
 

6.2 The panel was informed that one call agent carries out telephone customer 
satisfaction surveys every day and other call agents do so when volumes of 
incoming calls and emails are low. The most recent figures available for April 
2015 show that Mears contacted 18% of tenants who received responsive 
repairs and 25% of tenants who received gas repairs. Service data shows that 
that 95.7% of residents rated the repair service as good/excellent2 . 

 
 The responsive repairs service has targets for the time taken to carry out 

routine and emergency repairs. The target is for 98% of responsive repairs to 
be carried out within the time specified- figures for the year 2014/15 show that 
this was achieved in 99% of responsive repairs.  

 
6.3 Panel members observed the helpdesk staff at work, listening in to phone 

calls requesting responsive repairs and observing how the staff addressed the 
query. Panel members reported back that they were very impressed with the 
way in which the helpdesk operated and how the staff handled the calls. They 
felt the staff were well managed and well trained, and that they were highly 
motivated, working hard to answer all of the calls that were received. 

 
6.4 The panel were particularly impressed with the detailed questions that the 

helpdesk staff asked to help identify the exact repair that was needed. Call 
handlers have to be skilled at asking residents detailed information about the 
issue and fittings per specification. The more information that is collated 
means that the operative can have the correct tools, fittings and background 
to fix the fault efficiently. The team also needed to be able to calm the tenant 
down in a crisis situation i.e. the flooding of a room.  

                      
2 Data provided by the service 

38



 8

 
6.5 Overall the panel was very pleased with the way in which the helpdesk was 

managed and operated. The only suggestion that they had was for staff to 
develop their knowledge of the various repair types by shadowing operatives 
at work. 

 
 
 
Recommendation One: 
 

The panel recommends that as part of their training and induction, the 
Repairs Helpdesk staff should spend time with repairs operatives so 
that they can get a better understanding what is involved in the various 
repairs jobs and the average time taken. Both new and existing helpdesk 
staff should shadow plumbers, carpenters and electricians, and any 
other staff who may be regularly involved.   
 

Operatives 
 

6.6 Panel members were invited to join operatives to see the repairs pathway 
from an operative receiving the job number to completing it on-site. This was 
arranged with the resident’s permission. The panel members accompanied 
electricians, plumbers and carpenters for a day each. Operatives said that 
they wanted office staff to spend more time shadowing them to see what their 
day to day work involved. Panel members agreed with the suggestion - please 
see above for Recommendation One which supports this. 
 

6.7 Again panel members reported that they were happy with the standard of 
service provided by the operatives, and could not think of any ways in which 
this aspect of the responsive repairs service could be improved. 
 

6.8 Following their visit to the helpdesk, the visits with the operatives and 
discussions with senior managers within Housing and within Mears, panel 
members agreed that they were satisfied with the way in which the service 
operated from the initial request for responsive repairs to the repairs that were 
carried out by the operatives.  
 

6.9 The panel then moved on to examine how tenant satisfaction with the service 
was considered.  

 
7.  Tenant satisfaction with repairs service 
 
7.1 The council carries out an annual Survey of Tenants and Residents (STAR). 

The most recent survey was in June 2014 with a sample of 3000 Brighton & 
Hove City Council tenants, who were sent the survey. There was a response 
rate of 24%- 724 respondents.3   

  

                      
3 Housing Committee- 12 November 2014, Agenda Item 38 

39



 9

7.2 Two thirds of the sample had had a repair in the previous twelve month 
period. Satisfaction with the last completed repair had dropped since the last 
STAR survey; 2014 responses indicated 76% were satisfied overall with the 
repair, which has gone down from 81% in 2011. There were also 
disappointing responses with regard to the time taken before the repair work 
started, which had fallen from 83% to 77%; results had also fallen for 
satisfaction with the speed of repairs completion.  

 
7.3 It should be noted that these figures differ from the satisfaction responses that 

Mears’ own surveys have received. Mears reported that telephone surveys to 
477 residents gave a 93% satisfaction response.  

 
7.4 This difference in results is one of the reasons that the panel feel that Mears 

may not be best placed to carry out their own satisfaction surveys; tenants 
may not feel that they can give an honest response if they have had a less 
positive, or less satisfactory, service. The panel believe that resources such 
as mystery shoppers and resident assessors could be used to fill this gap.   

 
It should also be noted that Housing are now asking tenants the question 
‘what could we do better?’ and analysing and feeding back the responses 
received. 

 
How is satisfaction information currently collected? 
 
7.5 In the past Mears used handheld PDAs (Personal Data Assistants) to capture 

tenant satisfaction information immediately after every repair job. However 
this had ceased due to concerns from tenants4.  

 
7.6 Postcard response cards were also used to assess customer satisfaction, with 

tenants being asked to complete and return them giving their comments on 
the service received. Results showed that tenants only completed the cards if 
their experience was very positive or very negative. This meant that there was 
a low response rate for jobs that had been completed to a satisfactory level. 
 

7.7 Mears has now moved to a telephone based system, where a member of the 
Mears team calls tenants to ask for their feedback on the service they have 
received. This has proved successful in increasing response rates and the 
most recent figures indicate that in April 2015 telephone surveys were carried 
out relating to 18% of the responsive repair jobs and 25.5% of gas repairs 
jobs.5  However panel members did not think that this was the best solution as 
tenants might not feel comfortable giving negative feedback to the service 
provider.  

 

                      
4 Tenants did not like using the handhelds, not enough time to carry out the inspection of work and 
whether the problem was fixed on a long term basis and tenants did not know how the repair should 
be fixed and to what standard. Housing Committee, 12 November 2014 
5 Data provided by the service 
 

40



 10

7.8 The panel felt that, whilst most of the repairs service performed very well and 
was based around the needs of the tenant, this was one area that ought to be 
reviewed. 

 
7.9 Amicus Horizon told the panel that they collected resident satisfaction for 

responsive repairs through carrying out telephone surveys of approximately 
5% of residents who have had a repair completed the previous week. Amicus 
Horizon employs a survey team to carry out this survey and ask residents to 
rate their experience of their most recent repair. The panel felt that this was a 
more independent way of collecting repairs feedback than the contractor 
collating the feedback, However they were aware that there would be 
resource issues if employees were taken on specifically to carry out this role. 

 
7.11 Panel members suggested that as an alternative, the existing role of Tenant / 

Resident Assessors could be expanded. These are tenants who have been 
trained to examine empty properties before they are let, to ensure that 
properties are up to a lettable standard before new tenants move in. 

 
7.12 Two of the panel members are currently tenant assessors and felt that the 

assessor role’s remit could be easily expanded to include checking the 
standard responsive repairs on properties that are already tenanted. 

 
7.13 Panel members suggested that the Repairs Helpdesk staff advise all callers 

that they may be contacted by a Resident Assessor after the repair has 
completed, who would come and check the standard of repair. This would 
allow the tenant to opt out of the service if they did not wish to be contacted. 
The Resident Assessor could then carry out checks after the repairs had been 
completed and feedback any comments or issues to Mears.  

 
 Panel members thought that tenants talking to other tenants through the 

resident assessor scheme about their repairs could lead to more open 
discussions and more honest feedback. The panel feel it is essential to have 
proper tenant involvement throughout the repairs service, which should be 
tenant-led rather than officer-led. 

 
7.14 Panel members felt that this could be extended to be used for a wider estates 

inspection service. Some of the panel members had been involved in the Rate 
Your Estate pilot in which residents were trained to carry out official estate 
inspections and report defects or concerns. The residents went on 
‘walkabouts’ with other residents, putting together a photo-book scorecard 
looking at factors such as repairs, grounds maintenance, cleaning and the 
appearance of communal areas. One of the benefits was that there was an 
agreed set of standards across the city, increasing consistency.  

 
 Panel members were aware that there are no estate inspections of this nature 

at present, and feel that they could be re-introduced quite easily in order to 
increase resident involvement in estate inspections and identify problem 
areas.   

 

41



 11

7.15 The panel wanted to assure Mears and operatives that they were not querying 
the standard of repairs carried out but that they wanted to improve the 
feedback mechanism in order to provide another way of quality assurance. 

 
7.16 Recommendation Two 
 
 The panel recommend that resident assessors are used to assess a 

percentage of the completed repairs, to get a fuller assessment of these 
repairs.  The panel believes that by having another tenant visiting in 
person, it would lead to a more open discussion about the standard of 
the repair and increase the feedback for BHCC and Mears. The panel 
would expect that the assessors are able to choose for themselves the 
homes they visit to assess completed repairs and the number of 
assessments carried out. 

 
 It might be necessary to increase the capacity of the resident assessor 

scheme to enable more assessments to take place. It would be sensible 
to use the existing expertise of tenants and leaseholders, e.g. for ex-
builders to assess repairs. 

 
7.17 Recommendation Three: 
 
 Panel members are aware that there are no current estate inspections 

such as Rate Your Estate. This scheme was a useful way of recording 
residents’ concerns against a set of maintenance and appearance 
standards that were shared across the city. The panel recommends that 
this scheme is reintroduced with sufficient resources in order to enable 
residents to raise concerns about their estate. This will help to identify 
hotspots where there are problems such as fly-tipping, abandoned 
vehicles etc.  

 
8.  Conclusion 
 
8.1 Panel members were impressed overall with the service provided by the 

repairs service including the very high standard of service from Repairs 
Helpdesk staff and by the operatives that they spent time with. They would 
like to see greater work shadowing between the two teams to increase 
knowledge and skills. 

 
8.2 The members of the panel did feel that the service could be improved by 

changing the way in which post-repairs feedback was collected. They 
considered various ways of doing this but agreed that the most effective way 
of doing so would be to widen the remit of the Resident Assessor scheme so 
that tenants could be more involved in assessing the standards of repairs. 
This is in order to provide more quality assurance which will be of benefit to 
tenants, the council and to Mears. 

 
 8.3 The panel would like to thank everyone who spoke to them about the 

repairs service for their helpful and open approach. 
 

42



AGENDA ITEM 14 

  1 
 

 

Area Panels:  September 2015 

Briefing Paper:   Resident Involvement 

 
City Assembly 
 
Attendance at the City Assembly has been falling since November 2013. 
 

Venue Date Residents 

Hove Town Hall May 2013 74 

Housing Centre November 2013 99 

Housing Centre May 2014 82 

Clarendon Villas November 2014 59 

Housing Centre May 2015 53 

 
Residents on the City Assembly sub group of the Involvement & Empowerment Service 
Improvement Group have been reviewing the history of the City Assembly and discussing 
ways to improve attendance.  They have looked at feedback from tenant representatives, 
and have visited the housing offices to speak to other residents. 
 
The majority of people who have not attended the City Assembly have not heard of the City 
Assembly and were focused on their own concerns, although some said they would prefer a 
shorter event and suggested practical workshops.   
 
Involved residents have fed back that all day is too long, they would prefer a central venue, 
and while the themed assemblies have been useful there could be more of a focus on 
housing matters. 
 
From this they hope there might be better attendance if the event was held during the week 
as it had been when set up in 2008 rather than a Saturday. 
 
The sub group decided at its meeting last week that the next City Assembly would therefore 
be as follows: 
 
Date:                                    Wednesday 16 December 2015 
Venue:                                 Friends Meeting House, Ship Street, Brighton 
Time:                                    4pm – 8pm 
Theme:                                “Vision for Housing for the next 30 years’’  
 
The sub group feel that the name City Assembly may be difficult for people who have not 
been to the event to understand and would like the views of the Area Panel’s on the 
suggested name change to the Citywide Conference? 
 
 
Elections  
 
Elections to the Service Improvement Groups (SIGs) are taking place at this round of Area 
Panels along with the elections to the Tenant Disability Network (TDN).  Each Area Panel 

43



AGENDA ITEM 14 

  2 
 

has two representatives and deputies on each group.  TDN representatives have to be Area 
Panel representatives, but SIG representatives can be association committee members. 

Below is a brief description of the five service Improvement Groups 

 Home: the quality of our homes 

 Neighbourhood & Community: safer, cleaner and greener estates 

 Tenancy: ensuring tenants have the right support 

 Involvement & Empowerment: promoting more active and confident participation   

 Business & Value for Money: encouraging residents to have their say on investments 
that effect their area 

 
A reminder that representatives can sit on Involvement & Empowerment, and Business & 
Value for Money but can only also sit one of the following groups – Home, Neighbourhood 
& Community, and Tenancy. 
 
The council would like the views of the Area Panels that the same representative should 
only be able to Chair one SIG?  Elections of Chair and Vice Chair of the SIGs take place at 
the first meeting following the Area Panels. 
 
 
Estates Development Budget 
 
A remainder that the deadline for next year’s Estates Development Budget bids is Friday 13 
November.  Please do get in touch with your RIO if you require any help with the 
consultation process.  The Resident Involvement Team are still chasing some receipts 
mainly from quick bids, if they are outstanding please do endeavour to get them in or it may 
affect your EDB application process. 
 
An update on the EDB programme will be emailed and some paper copies will be available 
at the meeting. 
 
 
Contact: Becky Purnell, Resident Involvement Manager 

  Email: becky.purnell@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

44



AGENDA ITEM 16A 

 
Business & Value for Money Service Improvement Group 
22 July 2015 

 Discussed Universal Credit with Housing Income Management Committee. 

 Had photo taken to advertise group in Homing In. 

 Reviewed the Housing Management end of year performance report. 

 Reviewed the Resident Associations’ Grant Application criteria. 

 

 

Home Service Improvement Group  
 11 August 2015 

 Resident Inspectors terms of reference agreed.  Project to include empty 

property inspections and all other areas of Mears contract.  

 Resident Action Plan – discussion about stained cladding and management / 

communications between Mears and subcontractors. 

 Subgroups reports – Partnership & Core. 

 Jargon Busting reference first draft completed and discussion to roll out 

across other areas of resident involvement. 

 Volunteers will be working on how to improve on Estate Development Budget 

fencing programmes. 

 

45



46



1 
 

September 2015 
 

 

Preston Road – 2 new wheelchair accessible family bungalows  
 

 
 

Tenants have moved into two fully wheelchair accessible three bedroom family 
bungalows which were completed on time and below budget at the end of July, 
thanks to collaborative working across the council and with the council’s Sustainable 
Futures construction partnership and in-house architects.  They have been built on 
the foundations of unfit, former temporary accommodation units. 

Brighton & Hove City Council’s New Homes for Neighbourhoods programme is 
building much needed new council homes on council owned land. We work 
with local resident associations, ward councillors and many council teams and 
partners to make best use of council housing land and buildings, improving   
neighbourhoods and helping to meet the city’s housing needs. We are aiming 
to build at least 500 new council homes across Brighton & Hove. 
 
This summer tenants moved into the first new council homes to be completed 
under this programme. Another 77 new council homes for affordable rent are 
now being built at six sites in Brighton, Hove and Portslade, with more in the 
pipeline. The new homes will be let through Homemove. 

47



2 
 

Former Manor Place office – 15 new flats at Robert Lodge 

The concrete structure for the first block on the site of 
the old prefab Manor Place Housing Office is now up 
to the same height as Robert Lodge. The Estate 
Regeneration Team and constructor, Westridge, have 
kept in very close contact with Robert Lodge Resident 
Association during this noisiest part of the build and 
residents have been very patient. However, they 
helped redesign and replant their communal gardens, 
which are now a larger, more open shared space.   

 

  
 

The southern block of nine one 
bedroom flats with a lift should be 
finished in early 2016 and will be 
suitable for tenants with mobility 
needs. We expect work on the 
northern block of six flats to start as 
the first block is completed.  
 

12 new family houses in Portslade and Hangleton 

Garages on the north side of Flint Close in Portslade have now been demolished to 
make way for two new houses, with another pair to be built on the south side. Four 
family houses are also being built on former garage sites at both Foredown Road, 
Portslade and Hardwick Road, Hangleton. All 12 houses will be let in summer 2016. 
 

 

The constructors are removing underground 
cabling and diverting sewers and gas pipes in 
preparation for the demolition of the old Brooke 
Mead former temporary accommodation block in 
Albion Street. The 45 extra care flats with 
community facilities which will replace it should be 
ready by summer 2017. 
 

The Estate Regeneration Team and constructor 
Willmott Dixon are in regular contact with local 
residents and businesses as well as with Albion Hill 
Residents’ Association.  
 

Ardingly Street car parking site – 5 new homes in Kemp Town 

The sixth scheme now on site is on a small cleared site in Kemp Town formerly used 
for car parking. After completing ground works and foundations, construction of the 
concrete walls and floors should start in November. We expect the five homes, 
including a ground floor wheelchair accessible flat, to be let next summer.  
 

Westridge, like all constructors in the programme, are signed up to the Considerate 
Constructors Scheme and aim at all times to keep nuisance, noise and disruption 
from the building works to a minimum. They and the Estate Regeneration Team also 
make sure that the local tenant and resident association, ward councillors, Local 
Action Team and neighbouring residents are updated with progress on the works.  

Brooke Mead – 45 extra care flats   

48



3 
 

 

How is the council paying for the new homes? 

Most of the money comes from the rents for the new homes, which are higher than 
rents for existing council homes. They are ‘affordable rents’, set at the Local 
Housing Allowance levels of Housing Benefit. This rental income repays borrowing 
at low interest rates to help fund development costs.  
 

Secondly, we use Right to Buy receipts from other tenants exercising their right to 
buy their council home. Receipts from sales pay for up to a third of the cost to build 
each new home. If we don’t use this money to build replacement new homes, we 
have to pay it to central government.  
 

Thirdly, we can use some of the Housing Revenue Account  (HRA) surpluses  we 
make by running council housing more efficiently, now that the council housing 
budget is ‘self-financing’ and does not have to make payments to the government 
every year. 
 

Fourthly, we have some government grant paid by the Homes and Communities 
Agency: £2.4 million for Brooke Mead. And finally, Adult Services have also made a 
contribution of £2.1 million to the Brooke Mead extra care scheme. 
 

The chart below shows how the current new homes programme totalling £35.42 
million is being funded over three years. The programme of capital works and 
improvements to existing council homes is £31million for this year alone. 
   

   
 

 

£19.319m, 55% 

£6.848m, 19% 

£4.678m, 13% 

£2.475m, 
7% 

£2.1m, 
6% 

New Homes for Neighbourhoods 
Programme Funding 

Borrowing repaid
from rents from
new homes

 Right to Buy
receipts

Housing Revenue
Account
contribution

Homes and
Communities
Agency grant

Adult Services
contribution

49



4 
 

Findon Road, Whitehawk – 57 new flats on former library site 

 

This scheme of 57 new flats is 
currently going through the 
planning process.  If successful, 
we expect building work to start in 
early 2016.  
 

The two blocks include one, two 
and three bedroom flats with 
private balconies and  lifts and six 
wheelchair accessible ground floor 
flats with private patios. 
 

 

Wellsbourne site, Whitehawk   

The council’s in-house architects are now developing the initial design for 28 flats of 
varying sizes in two blocks on the cleared Wellsbourne site, between the health 
centre and the school on Whitehawk Road. The council’s Housing & New Homes and 
Policy & Resources Committees will be asked to approve development of the 
Wellsbourne scheme once further design work has been completed. 
 

Design Competition for small sites 

 

Former Selsfield Drive Housing Office 

A council architect is developing the initial design for 20 flats on the site of the 
former Selsfield Drive Housing Office on Lewes Road. Bates Estate Residents 
Association will continue to be involved as plans develop and the Estate 
Regeneration Team will organise full consultation with residents after further design. 
 

For more information  

There’s more information on the New Homes for Neighbourhoods council webpage 
at www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/nhfn, including regular updates on individual schemes 
and links to planning documents.  
 

You can contact the Estate Regeneration Team by:   

Email:  estate.regeneration@brighton-hove.gov.uk                 Phone: 01273 290591  

Post:    Estate Regeneration Team, Brighton & Hove City Council, Room 506,  

 Kings House, Grand Avenue, Hove BN3 2SR  

The New Homes for Neighbourhoods programme is testing the value for money, 
speed and quality of many different ways to develop the affordable new homes that 
the city needs on council owned land.   
 

As part of our strategy for small, challenging sites we are running a design 
competition with the Royal Institute of British Architects (RIBA) for four small former 
or underused car parking sites on council housing land at Hinton Close, Rotherfield 
Crescent and Natal Road and a small council owned parking site in Frederick Street, 
Brighton. The competition attracted 140 initial designs. 20 have now been shortlisted 
and will go out to consultation with local residents around the sites this autumn and 
be developed further. The four winning designs will be announced in January.   

50

http://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/content/housing/council-housing/new-homes-neighbourhoods
mailto:estate.regeneration@brighton-hove.gov.uk


AGENDA ITEM 16C 
 

 
Brighton & Hove Seaside Community Homes 

 
Latest Information – 14th September 2015 

 

 

 
Since Seaside Homes went live in November 2011, we have leased a total of 456 

properties and the partnership has now generated just over £23.5 m for the HRA to 

continue the decent homes work. 

 

Property Details 
 

Property 
Type 
 

Batch 
1 

1
st

 Nov 
2011 

Batch  
2  

1
st

 Feb 
2012 

Batch  
3  

30
th

 Mar 
2012 

Batch  
4    

1
st

 Jun 
2012 

Batch  
5    

1
st

 Aug 
2012 

Batch  
6  

1
st

 Oct  
2012 

Batch  
7 

27
th

 Mar  
2013 

Batch  
8  

17
th 

Mar  
2014 

Batch  
9 

1
st

 Sep 
2015 

 
Total 

Studio 5 1 5 3 6 8 11 4 1 44 

1 Bedroom 19 21 20 12 27 23 32 29 0 183 

2 Bedroom 20 17 12 18 16 18 13 27 36 177 

3 Bedroom 14 9 3 2 6 3 2 5 3 47 

4 Bedroom 3 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 5 

Total 
Properties 61 48 41 35 56 52 

 
58 65 

 
40 

 
456 

 
 
The batch 9 transfer has just been completed with the batch comprising of 19 refurbished 

and 21 un-refurbished properties. 

 

The 19 refurbished properties were tenanted immediately, taking us to a total of 435 

tenanted properties. 

 

Refurbishment works are already underway on the 21 un-refurbished properties with the 

first completions due to be ready around December.  All works are expected to be 

complete within 6 months. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

51



AGENDA ITEM 16C 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
The following tables provide a breakdown of the number of refurbished and un-refurbished 

properties received in each batch and progress made on refurbishment works. 

 
 

Table 1 - the breakdown of properties leased to 
date: 
 
At the time of handover Seaside Homes 
receives a mix of properties some of which 
have already undergone refurbishment and are 
ready to be tenanted and others for which 
refurbishment is about to commence.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Refurbishment – Progress to date: 

Table 2 – 337 properties were transferred to 

Seaside as un-refurbished.   

 

 

 

Table 1 
Refurbished 
Properties 

Un-
refurbished 
Properties 

Batch 1 44 17 

Batch 2 8 40 

Batch 3 0 41 

Batch 4 0 35 

Batch 5 3 53 

Batch 6 0 52 

Batch 7 2 56 

Batch 8 43 22 

Batch 9 19 21 

Total 119 337 

 
Table 2 

Refurbishment 
Works 

COMPLETED 

Refurbishment 
Works 

Incomplete 

Batch 1 17 0 

Batch 2 40 0 

Batch 3 41 0 

Batch 4 35 0 

Batch 5 53 0 

Batch 6 52 0 

Batch 7 56 0 

Batch 8 22 0 

Batch 9 0 21 

Total 316 21 

52



AGENDA ITEM 16C 
 

 

www.seaside-homes.org.uk 

53

http://www.seaside-homes.org.uk/


54


	Agenda
	10 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	12 Residents Question Time
	Appendix to Blue Pages 210915 EX Decs Programme 29-07-15 v2

	13 Tenant and Resident Scrutiny Panel Report on Responsive Repairs
	14 Resident Involvement
	16 City Wide Reports
	New Homes for Neighbourhoods Update September  2015
	Seaside Update - 14 09 15


